
 

SPECIAL CALLED MEETING 

June 28, 2021 
10:00 AM 

 
Albany-Dougherty Government Center 
222 Pine Ave, Room 100, Albany, GA 31701 

 

 
AGENDA 

To comply with the request set forth by the Chairman of Dougherty County, GA and the 
guidelines of the Center for Disease Control (CDC) regarding the Coronavirus (COVID19) 
pandemic and social distancing, face coverings (masks) are optional but encouraged for all 
meeting participants. 

The public will also have access to the live meeting by accessing the Dougherty County Georgia 
Government Facebook page at facebook.com/Dougherty.ga.us or viewing the public 
government access channel (Channel 16). 

1. Call the meeting to order by Chairman Christopher Cohilas. 

2. Roll Call. 

3. Minutes. 

a. Consider for action the Minutes of the June 7th Regular Meeting and June 14th Work 
Session.  ACTION: 

4. Delegations (The Commission will hear comments on those items pertaining to Dougherty 
County for which a public hearing has not been held or scheduled. Please be brief, to the 
point, and considerate of time for others). 

a. William Wright, dba Afram-Tech, Inc present to discuss building capacity and      
provide an update on the SBA-PPP program. 

5. Purchases. 

a. Consider for action the purchase of one (1) 2022 Ford F-350 Animal Control Vehicle 
with animal transport box and emergency equipment for the Dougherty County Police 
Department from the “piggy-back” from the Gwinnett County contract with Wade Ford 
(Smyrna, GA), in the amount of $52,073.47. This purchase will replace the wrecked 
animal control truck.  Funding is budgeted in SPLOST VII.  Assistant County 
Administrator Scott Addison will address. Chief Kenneth Johnson and City of Albany 
Procurement Manager Mike Trotter are present.  ACTION: 

  

1



b. Consider for action the Resolution providing for the acceptance and execution of the 
contract for Phase II Alley Improvements for Public Works from the lowest responsive 
and responsible bidder meeting specifications, Jim Boyd Construction (Albany, GA) in 
the amount of $1,192,037.90 subjection to the execution of the contract by the County 
Administrator.  The project will provide grading and paving of five alleys in the 
unincorporated areas of the County.  Four vendors submitted bids with the highest 
being $1,975,236.42.  Funding is budgeted in T-SPLOST.  Assistant County 
Administrator Scott Addison will address.  Assistant Public Works Director  
Chuck Mathis, Project Engineer Jeremy Brown and City of Albany Procurement 
Manager Mike Trotter are present.  ACTION: 

c. Consider for action the purchase of the ExecuTime time keeping software for 
Dougherty County from the sole source vendor, Tyler Technologies (Plano, TX) in the 
initial amount of $97,685.   Tyler Tech is the current vendor for the county's enterprise 
resource planning (ERP) software system.  The software will interface with the current 
platform to perform time keeping functions. The recurring annual fee is 
$43,342.  Funding is budgeted in SPLOST VI.  Assistant County Administrator  
Scott Addison will address. Finance Director Martha Hendley is present.  ACTION: 

6. Additional Business. 

a. Consider for action the recommendation from the Superior Court to accept the  
FY 2022 accountability court funding program sub-grant from the Criminal Justice 
Coordinating Council agency in the amount of $278,000.  The Commission approved 
the application in the March 15, 2021 Regular Meeting.  ACTION: 

b. Consider for action the recommendation from Superior Court to apply for a grant from 
the Criminal Justice Coordinating Council in the amount of $468,107.  The grant will 
provide case management services, housing, drug testing, medication, general 
business expenses and fund the salary for three full time employees. There is a local 
match of $9,033 and funding will be provided from the DATE fund. Substance Abuse 
Coordinator Patricia Griffin is present to address.  ACTION: 

c. Consider for approval the Resolution providing for the execution of the Professional 
Service Agreement from The Arc of Southwest Georgia for case management 
services and additional program support.  The agreement is a new requirement of the 
granting agency. Substance Abuse Coordinator Patricia Griffin is present to 
address.  ACTION: 

d. Consider for action the recommendation from the Finance Committee to deny the 
Coroner’s request for additional compensation ($15,000 salary increase). ACTION: 

e. Consider for action the recommendation from the Finance Committee to deny the 
payment of $75 per morgue trip for Deputy Coroners and the Coroner.  ACTION: 

f. Consider for action the Resolution authorizing the Intergovernmental Agreement with 
the City of Albany for the 2021 Byrne Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) Program in the 
amount of $16,761.  The Agreement stipulates that the County will receive 20% of the 
total award ($83,805).  Assistant County Administrator Scott Addison will 
address.  Finance Director Martha Hendley is present.  ACTION: 

g. Consider for action the addition of Juneteeth as a paid holiday.  County Administrator 
Michael McCoy will address.  HR Director Dominique Hall is present. ACTION: 

2



h. Consider for action the proposed FY 2021-22 Budget in the amount of 
$73,709,583.  County Administrator Michael McCoy and Finance Director Martha 
Hendley will address. ACTION: 

i. Consider for approval the recommendation from the County Attorney to enter into 
Executive Session for the purpose of discussing personnel and potential and pending 
litigation and then to adjourn.  ACTION: 

7. Updates from the County Administrator. 

a. REMINDER - In observance of the Independence Day Holiday, there will not be a 
scheduled meeting held on Monday, July 5, 2021.  The next meeting will be on July 
12, 2021 in Room 100. 

8. Updates from the County Attorney. 

9. Updates from the County Commission. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to 
observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of 
the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the ADA Coordinator at 229-431-2121 
promptly to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

3



 

 

DOUGHERTY COUNTY COMMISSION 

                                DRAFT  

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

 

June 7, 2021 

 

The Dougherty County Commission met in Room 100 of the Albany-Dougherty Government 

Center on June 7, 2021.  Chairman Christopher Cohilas presided.  Commissioners present were 

Victor Edwards, Gloria Gaines, Russell Gray, Clinton Johnson, Anthony Jones, and Ed Newsome.  

Also present were Assistant County Administrator Scott Addison, County Attorney Spencer Lee, 

County Clerk Jawahn Ware, and other staff.  The public and representatives of the media 

participated in person and via live streaming of the meeting on the County’s Facebook page and 

the government public access channel.  County Administrator Michael McCoy was absent. 

 

After the invocation and Pledge of Allegiance, the Chairman called for approval of the  

May 10th Work Session minutes. 

 

Commissioner Johnson moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Jones, the minutes 

were unanimously approved. 

 

The Chairman recognized the review of the Group Health Plan and its impact on the FY22 Budget.  

Health Plan Consultant Tammi Starkey addressed.  Ms. Starkey mentioned that this FY high-cost 

claims were 54% and is considered an anomaly.  COVID trends and the plan year 2021 cost 

stabilization action plan were reviewed.  She stated that 59% of the population is participating in 

the wellness program.  The FY 22 projected cost is $7,893,114 with the Dougherty County net 

cost being $6,786,580. 

 

The Chairman recognized Henry Thomas, CEO of the Georgia Music Association to update the 

Commission on the upcoming event in the community.  He initially presented the Call to Unity 

Campaign when Mayor Hubbard was in office.  

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the installation of a new HVAC System as part of the 

SPLOST Renovation Project for the Facilities Management Department from Safe Aire Heating and 

Cooling (Albany, GA) in the amount of $47,132.  Funding is budgeted in SPLOST VI and VII.   

 

Commissioner Gray moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Newsome, the motion 

for approval passed unanimously.   

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the resolution declaring the listed equipment as surplus 

and authorize the disposal of same.  This is the first listing of furniture and equipment damaged by 

water in the Judicial Building. 

 

Commissioner Johnson moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Newsome, the 

motion for approval passed unanimously.  Resolution 21-030 is entitled: 

4

Item 3a.



A RESOLUTION 

ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING AS SURPLUS THE 

ATTACHED LIST OF EQUIPMENT 

PROVIDING FOR DISPOSAL OF SAME 

REPEALING PRIOR RESOLUTIONS 

IN CONFLICT; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the resolution declaring a 2014 Ford F250 (from the 

Dougherty County Police Department) as surplus and authorize the sale through Underwriters Safety 

& Claims. 

 

Commissioner Johnson moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Gray, the motion for 

approval passed unanimously.  Resolution 21-031 is entitled: 

 

A RESOLUTION 

ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION TO DECLARE AS SURPLUS A SALVAGED 2014 FORD 

F250 (VIN NO.  1FTBF2A69EEA35071) AND HAVE SAID SURPLUSED 

SALVAGED VEHICLE DISPOSED OF THROUGH UNDERWRITERS 

SAFETY AND CLAIMS, DOUGHERTY COUNTY’S THIRD-PARTY 

ADMINISTRATOR; REPEALING RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF 

RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND FOR OTHER 

PURPOSES. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the recommendation from the Finance Committee to 

amend the Coroner’s FY 21 budget by $24,475.  The amended budget will increase to $236,006 

from $211,531.  

 

Commissioner Gray moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Johnson, the motion 

for approval passed unanimously.   

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the recommendation from the Finance Committee to fund 

the Albany State Youth Enrichment Program (ASYEP) in the amount of $5,000.  Funding will be 

provided from the DATE fund.  Commissioner Johnson stated that this was another opportunity to 

help the youth.   

 

Commissioner Jones moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Edwards, the motion 

for approval passed unanimously.   

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the resolution providing for the acceptance and execution 

of the proposed Management, Operations and Maintenance Agreement for the Government Center 

between Dougherty County and the City of Albany.  County Attorney Spencer Lee addressed.  

Attorney Lee stated that the City of Albany has already passed a resolution.  

 

5

Item 3a.



Commissioner Newsome moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Johnson, the 

motion for approval passed unanimously.  Resolution 21-032 is entitled: 

 

A RESOLUTION 

ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE APPROVAL AND 

EXECUTION OF A  MANAGEMENT, OPERATIONS AND 

MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT FOR THE GOVERNMENT 

CENTER BETWEEN DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA 

AND THE CITY OF ALBANY; REPEALING RESOLUTIONS 

OR PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; 

AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the Dougherty County Board of Commissioners 

acceptance of the Terms and Conditions and the County's allocation of $17,084,422 for the American 

Rescue Plan State and Local Recovery Fund from the U.S. Treasury which was signed by Finance 

Director Martha Hendley on May 10, 2021.  Guidance related to the ARP funds was provided by 

ACCG.  Assistant County Administrator Scott Addison addressed.  ACCG suggested that the 

acceptance of the money be ratified for documentation purposes even though it is not required by 

the Treasury.  Commissioner Gaines asked how the money would be sent.  Mr. Addison shared that 

the action plan is being developed and will be presented to the Commission for approval.  He added 

that money will need to be allocated by the end of 2024 with spending by 2026 and staff are working 

to understand the guidelines.  

 

Commissioner Newsome moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Johnson, the 

motion for approval passed unanimously. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration to approve the County's Disaster Recovery Fund Budget for 

Fiscal Year 2020 in the amount of $1,020,000.  Funding is provided by State and Federal Grants.  

Assistant County Administrator Scott Addison and Finance Director Martha Hendley addressed.  

Initially, it was not known what to initially budget and these are the final fund numbers.   

 

Commissioner Gray moved for approval.  Upon a second by Commissioner Jones, the motion for 

approval passed unanimously. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the presentation of the General Fund Budget Projections.  

Financial Advisor Ed Wall addressed.  Mr. Wall reviewed the budget assumptions about the 

revenues and expenses that were provided to the Board.  He reminded the Board that when there was 

a property tax increase it was anticipated that it would last 5 years.  He was pleased that the County 

is doing well especially considering that the County did not know what to budget due to the COVID 

pandemic.  The FY 22 budget is very similar to FY 21.  He commended the Board for having a fund 

balance.  The County does not have a policy on what the fund balance should be but historically, it 

has been at 3 to 6 months.  He would not like for the County to be less than 2 months.  If we are, 

then we would have to significantly decrease the budget or increase taxes.  The Chairman shared 

that they [the Board] will have to move forward irrespective of ARP funds being used for fixed costs 

or not; [if needed] amendments can be done during the year.  Commissioner Edwards asked about 

6

Item 3a.



the recommendation that was presented in the retreat specifically for employees.   Mr. Wall shared 

that compensation is a priority but during the pandemic, it could not be presented with a tax increase.  

Mr. Wall mentioned that it would not be best to present an increase in a pandemic and suggested 

possibly doing so in 2023 or 2024. 

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the discussion of the Fiscal Year 2022 Budget Request by 

Coroner Michael Fowler.  The Coroner reviewed specific line items for FY 22 to proactively prevent 

future requests for funding.  Mr. Addison did clarify that the Finance Committee did recommend a 

budget decrease but the committee does not receive specific [department] line item requests.  

 

The Chairman called for consideration of the presentation and review of the proposed FY 2022 

Budget as recommended by the Finance Committee.  Finance Committee Chairman Ed Newsome, 

Assistant County Administrator Scott Addison, and Finance Director Martha Hendley addressed.  

The introduction of the Finance Committee members was provided by the Finance Committee 

Chairman Ed Newsome and he thanked all that were involved.  The recommendation for FY 22 is 

$73,036,163 which is 3.0 % over last year.  Mr. Addison shared that the department managers only 

presented increases when absolutely needed and noted that the Coroner’s amendment presentation 

was not included.  If the increase for the health changes were removed, then we would be within 

1.4% of the CPI changes; allowing staff to present a flat budget. 

 

Commissioners Johnson and Gray gave kudos to Commissioner Newsome for chairing the Finance 

Committee.  Commissioner Gray also commended Public Works for a very good fishing rodeo and 

encouraged people to see the Radium Springs area.  

 

There being no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting adjourned at  

12:02 p.m. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

CHAIRMAN 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________ 

COUNTY CLERK 

7

Item 3a.



DOUGHERTY COUNTY COMMISSION 

                                DRAFT  

WORK SESSION MEETING MINUTES 

 

June 14, 2021 

 

The Dougherty County Commission met in Room 100 of the Albany-Dougherty Government 

Center on June 14, 2021.  Chairman Christopher Cohilas presided and called the meeting to order 

at 10:00 am.  Commissioners present were Victor Edwards, Gloria Gaines, Russell Gray,  

Clinton Johnson, Anthony Jones, and Ed Newsome.  Also present were County Administrator 

Michael McCoy, Assistant County Administrator Scott Addison, County Attorney Spencer Lee, 

County Clerk Jawahn Ware, and other staff.  The public and representatives of the media 

participated in person, via live streaming of the meeting on the County’s Facebook page and the 

government public access channel. 

 

The Chairman asked the Commission to review the minutes of the May 17th Regular Meeting and 

May 24th Work Session.  

 

The Chairman opened the Public Hearing on the proposed FY 2021-22 Budgets.  There being no 

one present to speak in favor or opposition to the budget  to the topic the Chairman closed the 

public hearing. 

 

The Chairman recognized EDC President Jana Dyke with the Albany-Dougherty Economic 

Development Commission (EDC), to update the Commission with the Quarterly Report.   

Mrs. Dyke introduced her assistant, Shannon Smith and said that she is available as an additional 

resource.  Mrs. Dkye discussed updates and informed the board of her upcoming 6-month 

[employment] mark.  She highlighted individuals involved in the meetings that were not typical 

stakeholders.  She introduced plans for a new website and creation of policy, procedures, and 

succession plans.  Site evaluations for the best marketing procedures and specific job fair initiatives 

will be conducted.  She announced that Pretoria Fields was named the “Rockstar Business of the 

Year.”  She mentioned that the EDC reached their capacity and will be requesting additional staff 

and funding because the business community has not been able to fund their share.  As a result of 

the funding shortage, all planned services have not been provided.  Commissioner Johnson shared 

that the Finance Committee will be considering the funding request that is similar to the ask of the 

City of Albany.  Mrs. Dyke shared that staff will still be working with the business community in-

house. 

 

The Chairman recognized citizen Cheryl Laughlin to discuss concerns regarding the County’s 

ordinance on solar panels.  Mrs. Laughlin shared that Paul Forgey encouraged her and her husband 

to address the Commission about the solar panels.  Mr. Forgey shared that the County had adopted 

the same ordinance as the city which included a provision for aesthetic purposes.  However, the 

city has now revised its ordinance.  The Chairman asked for consensus for a change to have a 

8

Item 3a.



congruent policy with the city and no one opposed the change.  Commissioner Gray did share that 

with technology changes, the county would need to consider any downstream effects.  Mr. Forgey 

outlined the process on how to update the ordinance.  

 

The Chairman recognized representatives from Conseedco, Inc. and Afram-Tech Inc to discuss 

the lack of diversity, inclusion, or fair opportunities in procurement processes and needed 

opportunities for local small/minority disenfranchised firms.  Due to technical issues, the 

presentation will be rescheduled. 

 

The Chairman called for a discussion of the recommendation to accept the bid for the Dougherty 

County Health Department Paint Project from the lowest responsive and responsible bidder 

meeting requirements of the bid, Affordable Painting and Remodeling (Leesburg, GA) in the 

amount of $190,000.  Three vendors submitted bids with only two meeting requirements with the 

highest bid being $224,106.  Funding is budgeted in SPLOST VII.  Assistant County Administrator 

Scott Addison addressed.  Facilities Management Director Heidi Minnick and City of Albany 

Buyer Kimberly Allen were present.  Per the inquiry of Commissioner Johnson, Mr. Addison 

addressed concerns about the change of specifications in the bid and a vendor compliant.   

Mrs. Minnick addressed the need for references and stated that specifications were changed based 

upon the Health Department’s request.  Commissioner Gray, who is a member of the 

subcommittee, confirmed that the Health Department Board and Director requested changes.  

Commissioner Edwards asked that Facilities Management start implementing mandatory pre bid 

conferences.  Buyer Kimberly Allen confirmed that the apparent lower bidder was in attendance 

at the conference and Mrs. Minnick confirmed that the requirement for references was in the first 

paragraph of the specifications.  

 

The Chairman called for a discussion of the recommendation to accept the bid to seal coat the 

parking lot at the Jail from the lowest responsive and responsible bidder meeting specifications, 

The Surface Masters, Inc. (Marietta, GA) in the amount of $54,875.  Two vendors submitted bids 

with the highest bid being $150,000.  Funding is budgeted in SPLOST VII.  Assistant County 

Administrator Scott Addison addressed.  Chief Jailer John Ostrander and City of Albany Buyer 

Kimberly Allen were present.   

 

The Chairman called for a discussion of the recommendation to accept the change order to perform 

exterior wall and hardscape restoration for the Judicial and Government Buildings with the current 

vendor Waterproofing Contractors, Inc. (Norcross, GA) in the amount of $123,647.  Funding is 

available in SPLOST VII- Judicial Building Improvements and Government Center 

Improvements.  Assistant County Administrator Scott Addison addressed.  Facilities Management 

Director Heidi Minnick and Consultant Jody Usry were present.  Mr. Addison clarified that the 

project is coming in under budget even with the change.  Chairman Cohilas asked that energy 

efficiency or a new judicial building be considered in SPLOST VIII. 

 

9

Item 3a.



The Chairman called for a discussion of speed display sign options for the Dougherty County 

Police Department.  The recommended signs will be used to reduce speeding in the unincorporated 

area of the county.  Assistant Chief Tateshea Irving addressed.  Ms. Irving mentioned that the 

purpose of the tool is not to replace officers but could be used as speed deterrents and to assist with 

crimes.  The new cost is $39,228 and may increase after July 1st.  Commissioner Jones asked that 

the Finance Committee amend the budget to have a line officer as opposed to the speed tracker.  

Chairman Cohilas shared that it doesn’t appear to be a position where we have to choose one over 

the other.  

 

Mr. McCoy reminded the board of the ribbon cutting at Pine Glenn on June 15, 2021.  

Commissioners Newsome and Edwards were both congratulated for completing their certification.  

 

There being no further business to come before the Commission, the meeting adjourned at  

11:29 a.m. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

CHAIRMAN 

 

ATTEST: 

_______________________ 

COUNTY CLERK 

10

Item 3a.



11

Item 4a.



12

Item 4a.



13

Item 4a.



14

Item 4a.



15

Item 4a.



16

Item 4a.



17

Item 4a.



18

Item 4a.



19

Item 4a.



20

Item 4a.



21

Item 4a.



22

Item 4a.



23

Item 4a.



24

Item 4a.



25

Item 4a.



26

Item 4a.



27

Item 4a.



28

Item 4a.



29

Item 4a.



30

Item 4a.



31

Item 4a.



32

Item 4a.



33

Item 4a.



34

Item 4a.



35

Item 4a.



36

Item 4a.



37

Item 4a.



38

Item 5a.



A RESOLUTION 
ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE APPROVAL AND EXECUTION OF A PROCUREMENT 
RECOMMENDATION WITH JIM BOYD CONSTRUCTION IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,192,037.90 FOR 
THE PURPOSE OF GRADING AND PAVING OF FIVE (5) ALLEYS IN THE UNINCORPORATED AREA 
OF DOUGHERTY COUNTY; REPEALING RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT 

HEREWITH; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty County, Georgia is hereby desirous 
of approving and executing a Procurement Recommendation with Jim Boyd Construction in the 
amount of $1,192,037.90 for the purpose of grading and paving of five (5) alleys in the 
unincorporated area of Dougherty County. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty County, 
Georgia and it is hereby resolved by Authority of same as follows: 
 
 SECTION I    The attached Procurement Recommendation in the amount of $1,192,037.90 
with Jim Boyd Construction for the purpose of grading and paving of five (5) alleys in the 
unincorporated area of Dougherty County is hereby approved and the County Administrator is 
hereby authorized to execute same.  The County Administrator is hereby authorized to execute 
any and all other documents necessary for full implementation of said Procurement 
Recommendation. 
 
 SECTION II   All Resolutions or parts of Resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 
 
 This the 28th day of June, 2021. 
 
       BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
       DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
       BY:___________________________ 
            Christopher S. Cohilas, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
County Clerk 

 

 

39

Item 5b.



40

Item 5b.



41

Item 5b.



 

                 Scott Addison 
         Assistant County Administrator 

 

 

 

DOUGHERTY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

                          ADMINISTRATION 

        

 

 
222 PINE AVENUE | SUITE 540 | ALBANY, GEORGIA 31701 | 229.431.2121 office | 229.438.3967 fax  

dougherty.ga.us 

Agenda Item 

 

Date:   June 24, 2021 

 

Meeting Date:             June 28, 2021 

 

Subject/Title:  ExecuTime Time Keeping Software 

 

Presented for:  Decision 

 

Presenter:                   Scott Addison, Asst. County Administrator 

 

Statement of Issue 

Dougherty County Finance is requesting to purchase ExecuTime time keeping software.  

 

History/Facts and Issues  

Dougherty County Finance is requesting to purchase ExecuTime time keeping software from the 

sole source vendor, Tyler Technologies (Plano, TX) in the initial amount of $97,685.Tyler Tech is 

the current vendor for the county’s enterprise resource system (ERP) software system. 

ExecuTime will interface with the current platform to perform time keeping functions. The recurring 

annual fee is $43,342. Funding is available in SPLOST VI. 

 

Recommended Action 

Recommend Dougherty County Commission approves the purchase of ExecuTime software from 

sole source vendor Tyler Technologies with the initial expenditure being $97,685 and annual 

expenditures thereafter being $43,342. 

 

Funding Source 

SPLOST VI 

153521036.ITIMPROVMT.COMPUT.ERPSYSTEM 

 

 

 

 

 

42

Item 5c.



43

Item 6b.



A RESOLUTION 
ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ACCEPTANCE AND EXECUTION OF A PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN DOUGHERTY COUNTY AND THE ARC OF SOUTHWEST 
GEORGIA FOR CASE MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND ADDITIONAL PROGRAM SUPPORT; 

REPEALING RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND FOR 
OTHER PURPOSES. 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty County, Georgia is hereby desirous 
of approving and executing a Professional Services Agreement between Dougherty County and 
The Arc of Southwest Georgia for Case Management Services and additional Program Support. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty County, 
Georgia and it is hereby resolved by Authority of same as follows: 
 
 SECTION I    The attached Professional Services Agreement between Dougherty County 
and The Arc of Southwest Georgia for the purpose of providing Case Management Services and 
additional Program Support is hereby approved and both the County Administrator and 
Chairman of the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty County are hereby authorized to execute 
same.  The County Administrator is hereby authorized to execute any and all other documents 
necessary for full implementation of the Professional Services Agreement. 
 
 SECTION II   All Resolutions or parts of Resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 
 
 This the 28th day of June, 2021. 
 
       BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
       DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
       BY:___________________________ 
            Christopher S. Cohilas, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
County Clerk 

 

 

 

44

Item 6c.



45

Item 6c.



46

Item 6c.



47

Item 6c.



48

Item 6c.



49

Item 6c.



50

Item 6c.



51

Item 6c.



52

Item 6c.



53

Item 6c.



54

Item 6c.



55

Item 6c.



56

Item 6c.



57

Item 6c.



58

Item 6c.



59

Item 6c.



A RESOLUTION 
ENTITLED 

A RESOLUTION PROVIDING FOR THE ACCEPTANCE AND EXECUTION OF AN 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF ALBANY AND DOUGHERTY 

COUNTY RELATIVE TO A 2021 BYRNE JUSTICE ASSISTANCE  (JAG) PROGAM AWARD; 
REPEALING RESOLUTIONS OR PARTS OF RESOLUTIONS IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND FOR 

OTHER PURPOSES. 
 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty County, Georgia is hereby desirous 
of approving and executing an Intergovernmental Agreement between the City of Albany and 
Dougherty County relative to a 2021 Byrne Justice Assistance (JAG) Program Award. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Dougherty County, 
Georgia and it is hereby resolved by Authority of same as follows: 
 
 SECTION I    The attached Intergovernmental Agreement between the City of Albany and 
Dougherty County relative to a 2021 Byrne Justice Assistance (JAG) Program Award is hereby 
approved and the County Administrator is hereby authorized to execute same.  The County 
Administrator is hereby authorized to execute any and all other documents necessary for full 
implementation of the Intergovernmental Agreement.  
 
 SECTION II   All Resolutions or parts of Resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed. 
 
 This the 28th day of June, 2021. 
 
       BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 
       DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
       BY:___________________________ 
            Christopher S. Cohilas, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
County Clerk 

 

 

60

Item 6f.



THE STATE OF GEORGIA     
DOUGHERTY COUNTY 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT  
BETWEEN THE CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA  

AND DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 

2021 BYRNE JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT (JAG) PROGRAM AWARD  
 
KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS: 
 
 This Agreement is made and entered into this _____ day of _______________, 2021, by 
and between COUNTY OF DOUGHERTY, GEORGIA, acting by and through its governing body, the 
Dougherty County Commission (hereinafter referred to as COUNTY), and the CITY OF ALBANY, 
GEORGIA, acting by and through its governing body, the City Commission (hereinafter referred 
to as CITY),  
 

Witnesseth: 
 
 WHEREAS, this Agreement is made under the authority of Article IX, Section III, Paragraph 
I(a) of the Constitution of the State of Georgia; and 
 

WHEREAS, each governing body, in performing governmental functions or in paying for 
the performance of governmental functions hereunder, shall make that performance or those 
payments from current revenues legally available to that party; and 

 
WHEREAS, each governing body finds that the performance of this Agreement is in the 

best interests of both parties, that the undertaking will benefit the public, and that the division of 
costs fairly compensates the performing party for the service or functions under this agreement; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, by mutual agreement the COUNTY as the required disparate jurisdiction 

receives 20% of the JAG award each year; and 
 
WHEREAS, the COUNTY’S appropriation is $16,761.00 for the JAG award for the JAG 

Program; and 
 
WHEREAS, the CITY and COUNTY believe it to be in their best interest to reallocate the 

JAG funds as stated herein. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the COUNTY and CITY agree as follows: 
 

Section 1. 
 
CITY and COUNTY agree that the COUNTY should receive a total of $16,761.00 with the balance 
of JAG funds in the amount of $67,044.00 to go to the CITY. 
 
  

61

Item 6f.



Section 2. 
 
COUNTY understands that this grant program ends on September 30, 2024 and all funds must 
have been disbursed by said date; that in order to enable CITY to comply with the program’s 
reporting requirements, COUNTY agrees to provide CITY with copies of purchase orders, invoices 
and receiving reports within 30 days of each such event. COUNTY also agrees to submit a request 
for approval to change spending plan to CITY grant administrator as they occur prior to spending. 
 

Section 3. 
 
COUNTY agrees to use $16,761.00 for the JAG Program until September 30, 2024. 
 

Section 4. 
 
All of the privileges and immunities from liability which exist in favor of the COUNTY or CITY are 
not affected by this Agreement. 
 

Section 5. 
 
Each party to this Agreement will be responsible for its own actions in providing services under 
this Agreement and shall not be liable for any civil liability that may arise from the furnishing of 
the services by the other party. 
 

Section 6. 
 
The parties to this Agreement do not intend for any third party to obtain a right by virtue of this 
Agreement. 
 

Section 7. 
 
COUNTY and CITY agree as follows: 
 
Pre-Requirements.  COUNTY shall adopt a policy on grant management.  The policy shall include 
provisions for pre-award, award monitoring, post award and close out. CITY has such a policy in 
place dated ________________. 
 
Monitoring Requirements.   
 

• COUNTY and CITY must comply with Department of Justice part 200 of uniform 
requirements.  The part 200 uniform requirements are the requirements set out at 2 C.F.R. 
Part 200. 

• COUNTY must provide grant progress reports and finance reports to CITY. 
• COUNTY shall be accountable to CITY for how it uses federal funds under subaward. 
• COUNTY shall follow all applicable federal rules referencing financial management, internal 

controls, indirect cost, records retention and access. 
• COUNTY shall collect and provide performance data quarterly to CITY. 
• COUNTY agrees to comply with all site visits and desk review requests as it pertains to 

sub-award. 

62

Item 6f.



• COUNTY agrees to provide CITY and auditors access to COUNTY’S records and financial 
statements as necessary.  

 
Post Award: 
 

• COUNTY shall review and comply with all sub-award provisions and/or special conditions. 
• COUNTY shall submit all required sub-award documents with certified executive officer’s 

signatures and return to CITY prior to any spending. 
 
Closeout Requirements: 
 

• COUNTY agrees to submit to CITY, no later than thirty (30) calendar days after the end 
date of the grant, all performance, financial and other reports as required by the terms 
and conditions of the federal award. 

• The Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity must make prompt payments to the 
non-Federal entity for allowable reimbursable costs under the Federal award being closed 
out. 

• The non-Federal entity must account for any real and personal property acquired with 
Federal funds or received from the Federal Government in accordance with §§ 200.310 
Insurance coverage through 200.316 Property trust relationship and 200.329 Reporting 
on real property. 

 
Section 8. 

 
By entering into this Agreement, the parties do not intend to create any obligations express or 
implied other than those set out herein; further, this Agreement shall not create any rights in any 
party not a signatory hereto. 
 
 
CITY OF ALBANY, GEORGIA    DOUGHERTY COUNTY, GEORGIA 
 
__________________________________  ___________________________________ 
City Manager      County Administrator 
 
Attest:       Attest: 
 
__________________________________  ___________________________________ 
City Clerk      County Clerk 
 
 
Approved as to Form:     Approved as to Form: 
 
__________________________________  ___________________________________ 
C. Nathan Davis, City Attorney   W. Spencer Lee, IV, County Attorney 
 

63

Item 6f.



Christopher Cohilas, Chairman 

Ed Newsome, District 1 

Victor Edwards, Vice Chairman, District 2 

Clinton Johnson, District 3 

Russell Gray, District 4 

Gloria Gaines, District 5 

Anthony Jones, District 6 

DOUGHERTY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

                          ADMINISTRATION 

       Michael McCoy, County Administrator 

       W. Spencer Lee, IV, County Attorney 

 

   
 

 
222 PINE AVENUE | SUITE 540 | ALBANY, GEORGIA 31701 | 229.431.2121 | dougherty.ga.us 

OPTION 1 

TO:  Elected Officials and Department Managers 

FROM: Michael McCoy, County Administrator 

DATE: Monday, June 28, 2021 

SUBJECT: FY 2021-22 Holiday Schedule 

 

As a reminder, all holidays are paid this budget year. 

 

Holiday Day Observed 

Independence Day July 5 – Monday 

Labor Day September 6 – Monday 

Thanksgiving Day November 25 – Thursday 

Day After Thanksgiving November 26 – Friday 

Christmas Eve December 23 – Thursday 

Christmas Day December 24 – Friday 

New Year’s Day 2022 December 31 – Friday 

Martin Luther King Jr.’s 

Birthday 
January 17 – Monday 

Memorial Day May 30 – Monday 

 

 

64

Item 6g.



Christopher Cohilas, Chairman 

Ed Newsome, District 1 

Victor Edwards, Vice Chairman, District 2 

Clinton Johnson, District 3 

Russell Gray, District 4 

Gloria Gaines, District 5 

Anthony Jones, District 6 

DOUGHERTY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

                          ADMINISTRATION 

       Michael McCoy, County Administrator 

       W. Spencer Lee, IV, County Attorney 

 

   
 

 
222 PINE AVENUE | SUITE 540 | ALBANY, GEORGIA 31701 | 229.431.2121 | dougherty.ga.us 

OPTION 2 

TO:  Elected Officials and Department Managers 

FROM: Michael McCoy, County Administrator 

DATE: Monday, June 28, 2021 

SUBJECT: FY 2021-22 Holiday Schedule 

 

As a reminder, all holidays are paid this budget year. 

 

Holiday Day Observed 

Independence Day July 5 – Monday 

Labor Day September 6 – Monday 

Thanksgiving Day November 25 – Thursday 

Day After Thanksgiving November 26 – Friday 

Christmas Eve December 23 – Thursday 

Christmas Day December 24 – Friday 

New Year’s Day 2022 December 31 – Friday 

Martin Luther King Jr.’s 

Birthday 
January 17 – Monday 

Memorial Day May 30 – Monday 

Juneteenth June 20 – Monday  

 

65

Item 6g.



FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22

Proposed 
Amendment
after Finance
Committee

 Updated
FY 2021/22

Budgets 
%

Change

General Fund
M & O 52,978,381       56,073,746      13,620                  56,087,366          5.9%
CIP 242,685            246,115           246,115               1.4%

Alternate Dispute Resolution -                   108,600           108,600               

Special Services District Fund 8,006,058         8,192,540        8,192,540            2.3%

Solid Waste Enterprise Fund
M & O 3,922,777         3,948,992        3,948,992            0.7%
Capital Outlay 2,288,000         1,785,000        1,785,000            -22.0%

Confiscated Funds 496,000            549,000           549,000               10.7%
DHS Building Fund

M & O 539,883            179,600           179,600               -66.7%
CIP 255,000            135,000           135,000               -47.1%

Lease-Commercial Fund 67,200              59,700             59,700                 -11.2%

Grants Fund 1,980,748         2,086,492        2,086,492            5.3%

D.A.T.E. 50,000             50,000                 
Law Library Fund 148,635            281,178           281,178               89.2%

Total for all Budgets 70,925,367$     73,695,963$    13,620$                73,709,583$        3.9%

Dougherty County, Georgia
Proposed Budgets
Fiscal Year 2021/22

66

Item 6h.



6/28/2021

56,073,746   Fund Balance Use
6,673,080                               

Coroner's Budget Total as of 6/14/2021 185,000                       
---Increase in Group Health Insurance from FY21 to FY 13,620                         

New Budget Total for Coroner 198,620                       

13,620           13,620                                    

56,087,366   6,686,700                               

Total additional Requests

Total General Fund Budget Requests

Board of Commissioners 
Proposed Amendment after Finance Committee

General Fund M&O
Finance Committee Recommended
on 6/14/2021 to BOC

Coroner's Budget increase for Health Insurance

67

Item 6h.



68

Item 6h.



69

Item 6h.


	Top
	Item 3a.	Minutes
	2021.06.07 Minutes Regular
	2021.06.14 Minutes Work

	Item 4a.	Delegation a_William Wright
	2021.06.28_William Wright

	Item 5a.	Purchase a_Animal Control Vehicle
	Purchase a_Animal Control Vehicle

	Item 5b.	Purchase b_Alley Paving
	Purchase b_Alley Improvement Resolution
	Purchase b_Alley Improvement

	Item 5c.	Purchase c_Time System
	Purchase c_ExecuTime Software

	Item 6b.	Other b_CJCC Grant
	Other b_CJCC Grant

	Item 6c.	Other c_Superior Court Professional Service Agreement
	Other c_Resolution Superior Court Prof Serv Agreement
	Other c_Superior Court Prof Serv Agreement

	Item 6f.	Other f_2021 JAG Agreement
	Other f_2021 JAG Resolution
	Other f_2021 JAG

	Item 6g.	Other g_Holiday
	other g_ Holidays

	Item 6h.	Other h_ Budget 2021-22
	other h_ Budget
	other h_Budget 2

	Bottom

